

RESOLUTION NO. 2014 -

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF BROWARD COUNTY, FLORIDA, PERTAINING TO THE ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AND GROWTH MANAGEMENT DEPARTMENT; AMENDING VARIOUS PROVISIONS IN CHAPTER 8, "ORGANIZATION, ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AND GROWTH MANAGEMENT," AND CHAPTER 27, "OPERATIONAL POLICY, ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AND GROWTH MANAGEMENT DEPARTMENT," OF THE BROWARD COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE CODE, TO REFLECT CHANGE IN ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE AND OPERATIONAL CHANGES; AMENDING VARIOUS PROVISIONS IN CHAPTER 40, "FEES AND OTHER CHARGES, ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AND GROWTH MANAGEMENT DEPARTMENT," TO REFLECT ORGANIZATIONAL AND FEE CHANGES; AND PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY, INCLUSION IN THE BROWARD COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE CODE, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF BROWARD COUNTY, FLORIDA:

Section 1. Chapter 8, "Organization, Environmental Protection and Growth Management," Part I, "Environmental Protection and Growth Management Department," is hereby amended to read as follows:

**PART I. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AND
GROWTH MANAGEMENT DEPARTMENT**

8.1. Established; Scope.

There is hereby established an Environmental Protection and Growth Management Department which shall be responsible for the administration and coordination of the County's comprehensive planning and redevelopment programs;

1 consumer protection; emergency management; and protection, restoration, and
2 enhancement of Broward County's natural resources, public health, and environmental
3 quality of life. The Environmental Protection and Growth Management Department
4 shall include the divisions of ~~Development and Environmental Regulation~~ Animal Care
5 and Adoption; Emergency Management; Planning and Redevelopment; ~~Natural~~
6 ~~Resources~~ Environmental Planning and ~~Management~~ Community Resilience;
7 ~~Permitting~~; Environmental Licensing; and ~~Consumer Protection~~ Building Permitting;
8 Housing Finance and Community Development; and Pollution Prevention, Remediation,
9 and Air Quality. The Environmental Protection and Growth Management Department
10 shall be proactive in balancing the needs of the natural and human community ensuring
11 a future in which the County's natural and urban resources are preserved, protected,
12 and enhanced in keeping with federal, state, and Broward County Board of County
13 Commissioners' laws, regulations, rules, and ordinances.

14 **8.2. Director as Head of the Environmental Protection and Growth Management**
15 **Department.**

16 There is hereby established an Environmental Protection and Growth
17 Management Department ("Department"), which shall be responsible for the
18 administration and coordination of the County's comprehensive planning and
19 redevelopment programs; consumer protection; emergency management; and
20 protection, restoration, and enhancement of Broward County's natural resources, public
21 health, and environmental quality of life. ~~The Environmental Protection and Growth~~
22 ~~Management Department shall include the divisions of Development and Environmental~~
23 ~~Regulation; Emergency Management; Planning and Redevelopment; Natural~~
24 ~~Resources Planning; and Management; Permitting, Licensing, and Consumer~~

Coding: Words in ~~struck-through~~ type are deletions from existing text. Words in
underscoring type are additions.

1 ~~Protection; Housing Finance and Community Development; and Pollution Prevention,~~
2 ~~Remediation, and Air Quality. The Environmental Protection and Growth Management~~
3 ~~Department shall be proactive in balancing the needs of the natural and human~~
4 ~~community ensuring a future in which the County's natural and urban resources are~~
5 ~~preserved, protected, and enhanced in keeping with federal, state, and Broward County~~
6 ~~Board of County Commissioners' laws, regulations, rules, and ordinances. The~~
7 ~~Department Director shall be the head of the Department.~~

8 **8.3. Functions; Responsibilities.**

9 The functions and responsibilities of the ~~Environmental Protection and Growth~~
10 ~~Management Department~~ shall include the following:

- 11 a. Direct and manage the operations of the divisions of ~~Development and~~
12 ~~Environmental Regulation~~ Animal Care and Adoption; ~~Permitting,~~
13 ~~Environmental~~ Licensing; and ~~Consumer Protection~~ Building Permitting;
14 ~~Natural Resources~~ Environmental Planning and Management Community
15 Resilience; Emergency Management; Planning and Redevelopment;
16 Housing Finance and Community Development; and Pollution Prevention,
17 Remediation, and Air Quality.

18 . . .

19 Section 2. Chapter 8, Part II, "Development and Environmental Regulation
20 Division," is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:

21 **PART II. ANIMAL CARE AND**
22 **ADOPTION DIVISION**

23 **8.7. Animal Care and Adoption Division Established; Director as Head.**

24
Coding: Words in ~~struck-through~~ type are deletions from existing text. Words in
underscored type are additions.

1 There is hereby established an Animal Care and Adoption Division ("Division") in
2 the Environmental Protection and Growth Management Department ("Department").
3 The Division shall be responsible for the administration of the County's animal care and
4 adoption functions. The Division Director shall have a four-year college degree, and
5 preferably a graduate degree, and at least four (4) years of progressively responsible
6 supervisory and administrative experience, or any equivalent combination of relevant
7 training and experience.

8 **8.8. Functions; Responsibilities.**

9 The functions and responsibilities of the Division shall include the following:

- 10 a. Maintain a County animal shelter for the impoundment of animals believed
11 to be strays, at large, and having or believed to have rabies or any
12 infectious or contagious disease, and a state-approved animal clinic
13 staffed by a Florida licensed Doctor of Veterinary Medicine to administer
14 treatment to sick, injured, and diseased animals, and perform surgical
15 sterilizations of dogs and cats as provided in Section 832.15, Florida
16 Statutes.
- 17 b. Apprehend and return to the owner or impound any animal roaming free
18 and take such measures as are provided by law to seek treatment for,
19 humanely dispose of, or put for adoption, any unclaimed animals
20 impounded in the animal shelter.
- 21 c. Furnish County certificates, microchips, and rabies registration tags as
22 prescribed by law, ordinance, or resolution of the Board of County
23 Commissioners, and maintain all necessary records for animals with
24 County rabies registration tags.

Coding: Words in ~~struck-through~~ type are deletions from existing text. Words in
underscored type are additions.

- 1 d. Provide free sterilization and rabies vaccination of dogs and cats owned
2 by indigent residents of Broward County, implement high volume, low to
3 no cost pet sterilization programs, and conduct low cost rabies
4 vaccinations for pets living in Broward County.
- 5 e. Provide twenty-four (24) hour emergency call-out service daily for animals
6 that have been critically injured or require immediate intervention, as
7 determined by a law enforcement officer.
- 8 f. Enforce laws and ordinances related to animal care and regulation,
9 including the harboring of strays or hoarding conditions, hobby or
10 commercial breeding locations and activities, and the prevention of cruelty
11 to animals, and refer to the Broward County State Attorney's Office
12 criminal complaints which are determined to contain reasonable grounds
13 for a belief that an animal cruelty act has been committed in violation of
14 the state criminal laws or County ordinances.
- 15 g. Process animal care enforcement matters that require administrative or
16 judicial hearings, collect such fines for violations of codes, ordinances, and
17 regulations in effect within Broward County, as authorized by the Board of
18 County Commissioners, including the initiation of actions to collect
19 penalties.
- 20 h. Coordinate Department response to animal-related complaints, problems,
21 or public records requests.
- 22 i. Provide administrative support for the Broward County Animal Care
23 Advisory Committee.
- 24 j. Implement an adoption policy and a sustainable guarantee strategy for

Coding: Words in ~~struck-through~~ type are deletions from existing text. Words in
 underscored type are additions.

1 unclaimed animals to ensure that each animal adopted will be placed in a
2 home where it will be given proper care and humane treatment.

3 k. Develop and implement a sustainable feral cat management strategy for
4 Broward County.

5 l. Coordinate with other governmental bodies and agencies regarding
6 implementation of pet registration and vaccination programs.

7 m. Develop and implement programs supported by grant awards.

8 n. Coordinate with applicable law enforcement agencies to investigate
9 complaints of animal fighting activities or evidence of teaching animals to
10 fight.

11 o. In concert with the Office of the County Attorney, propose, process, and
12 implement changes to the Broward County Code of Ordinances consistent
13 with current animal welfare practices, technology, and pet-friendly culture
14 in Broward County.

15 p. Develop and implement a policy to release at risk animals to approved
16 foster caregivers or approved partner rescue groups.

17 q. Conduct a community education program on the care and control of
18 animals and develop a broad-based marketing strategy to showcase the
19 need for public support and to increase the adoption rate and live
20 outcomes.

21 r. Provide all necessary support for pre-disaster planning and post-disaster
22 recovery efforts under the Federal Emergency Management Agency
23 Emergency Support Function 17 ("FEMA ESF17") emergency response
24 protocols, provide required assistance to the Florida State Agricultural

Coding: Words in ~~struck-through~~ type are deletions from existing text. Words in
underscored type are additions.

1 Response Team ("FL SART") emergency response team for large animal
2 rescue operations, and maintain inventory controls of FL SART placement
3 of regional Mobile Animal Response Equipment ("MARE") resources.

4 s. Develop, plan, and implement program initiatives as a member of the
5 Tri-County Spay/Neuter Coalition.

6 Section 3. Chapter 8, Part III, "Permitting, Licensing, and Consumer Protection
7 Division," is hereby amended to read as follows:

8 **PART III. PERMITTING, ENVIRONMENTAL LICENSING, AND**
9 **CONSUMER PROTECTION BUILDING PERMITTING DIVISION**

10 **8.12. Permitting, Environmental Licensing, and Consumer Protection Building**
11 **Permitting Division Established; Director as Head.**

12 There is hereby established a ~~Permitting,~~ an Environmental Licensing, and
13 ~~Consumer Protection Building Permitting Division ("Division") in the Environmental~~
14 ~~Protection and Growth Management Department ("Department")~~ which shall be
15 responsible for the administration of the County's building code, the water engineering
16 and licensing regulatory program, the aquatic and wetland resources regulatory
17 program, the tree preservation and abuse regulatory program, and consumer protection
18 ~~and animal care and adoption functions.~~ The ~~Permitting, Licensing, and Consumer~~
19 ~~Protection Division~~ Director shall be the head of the ~~Permitting, Licensing, and~~
20 ~~Consumer Protection Division.~~ The ~~Permitting, Licensing, and Consumer Protection~~
21 Division Director shall have a college degree with major course work in engineering,
22 architecture, or related field; and at least six (6) years' experience in building, permitting,
23 biological resources programs, water resources programs, and or consumer protection
24 programs; including four (4) years of high level supervisory and administrative

Coding: Words in ~~struck-through~~ type are deletions from existing text. Words in
 underscoring type are additions.

1 experience in a large organization in a variety of interrelated programs planning,
2 biological resources, or water resources; or any equivalent combination of relevant
3 training and experience.

4 **8.13. Functions; Responsibilities.**

5 The ~~Permitting, Licensing, and Consumer Protection~~ Division shall have the
6 authority to:

7 . . .

8 h. ~~Administer and enforce the Broward County Zoning Code, including~~
9 ~~landscaping, parking, and lighting.~~

10 i. ~~Perform review of plats, site plans, and construction permits for verification~~
11 ~~of compliance with the requirements of the Broward County Zoning Code,~~
12 ~~including setbacks, height, plot coverage, parking, lighting, landscaping,~~
13 ~~and signs.~~

14 j. ~~Administer the Certificate of Use program for approval of commercial and~~
15 ~~industrial property users and home offices, including processing of~~
16 ~~applications, collection of fees, coordination of inspections between~~
17 ~~agencies, processing of zoning inspection results, violation notice~~
18 ~~issuance and enforcement procedures, and final issuance of the~~
19 ~~Certificate of Use after approval.~~

20 k. ~~Administer the sign code providing for review, permitting, and annual~~
21 ~~renewal of all signs in unincorporated Broward County.~~

22 l. ~~Collect such fines for violations of codes, ordinances, and regulations in~~
23 ~~effect within Broward County as authorized by the County Commission.~~
24

Coding: Words in ~~struck-through~~ type are deletions from existing text. Words in
underscored type are additions.

- 1 ~~m. h.~~ Receive and investigate complaints of unfair or deceptive trade acts or
2 practices.
- 3 ~~n.~~ ~~Strive to resolve complaints of unfair or deceptive trade practices by~~
4 ~~encouraging cooperation and mediation between affected parties.~~
- 5 ~~o.~~ ~~Refer to the Broward County State Attorney's Office criminal complaints~~
6 ~~which are determined to contain reasonable grounds for a belief that an~~
7 ~~unfair or deceptive trade practice or act has been committed in violation of~~
8 ~~the state criminal laws or county ordinances.~~
- 9 ~~p.~~ ~~Promote consumer protection through consumer education programs and~~
10 ~~enlist public support, the assistance and cooperation of civic~~
11 ~~organizations, business enterprises, and consumer affairs organizations to~~
12 ~~promote consumer awareness.~~
- 13 ~~q. i.~~ Encourage and promote consumer protection before administrative,
14 regulatory, and legislative bodies.
- 15 ~~r.~~ ~~Conduct surveys and inspections of businesses and commercial~~
16 ~~enterprises and report any unfair or deceptive trade practices to the~~
17 ~~appropriate enforcing agencies of the state and county.~~
- 18 ~~s. j.~~ Administer and enforce rules, policies, and ordinances affecting ~~taxicabs,~~
19 ~~and limousines and other vehicles for hire, including those operating from~~
20 ~~the Fort Lauderdale/Hollywood International Airport and Port Everglades~~
21 regulated businesses.
- 22 ~~t.~~ ~~Administer and enforce rules, policies and ordinances affecting motor~~
23 ~~vehicle repair, motor vehicle body repair, and motor vehicle painting shops~~
24 ~~and technicians.~~

Coding: Words in ~~struck-through~~ type are deletions from existing text. Words in
 underscored type are additions.

- 1 u. ~~Administer and enforce rules, policies and ordinances affecting kosher~~
2 ~~Foods Sales.~~
- 3 v. ~~Administer and enforce rules, policies and ordinances affecting movers.~~
- 4 w. ~~Maintain a state approved animal clinic staffed by a Florida licensed~~
5 ~~Doctor of Veterinary Medicine to administer treatment to sick, injured, and~~
6 ~~diseased animals, and perform surgical sterilizations of dogs and cats as~~
7 ~~provided in Section 823.15, Florida Statutes, as may be amended from~~
8 ~~time to time.~~
- 9 x. ~~Enforce all laws and ordinances relating to animal care and regulation and~~
10 ~~the prevention of cruelty to animals.~~
- 11 y. ~~Charge such fees and rates for services as are prescribed by law or~~
12 ~~county ordinance or resolution by the Board of County Commissioners.~~
- 13 z. ~~Maintain a county animal shelter for the impoundment of animals believed~~
14 ~~to be strays, at large, having or believed to have rabies or any infectious~~
15 ~~or contagious disease.~~
- 16 aa. ~~Apprehend and return to owner or impound any animal roaming free.~~
- 17 bb. ~~Furnish county certificates and tags as prescribed by law, ordinance, or~~
18 ~~resolution by the Board of County Commissioners.~~
- 19 cc. ~~Take such measures as are provided by law to seek treatment for,~~
20 ~~destroy, dispose of or put for adoption any unclaimed animals impounded~~
21 ~~in the animal shelter.~~
- 22 dd. ~~Maintain all necessary records for animals with county tags.~~
- 23 ee. ~~Conduct a community education program on the care and control of~~
24 ~~animals.~~

Coding: Words in ~~struck-through~~ type are deletions from existing text. Words in
 underscored type are additions.

- 1 ff. ~~Provide free sterilization of dogs and cats owned by indigent residents of~~
2 ~~Broward County.~~
- 3 gg. ~~Provide 24 hour emergency service daily.~~
- 4 hh. ~~Register and tattoo all guard dogs.~~
- 5 ii. ~~Implement an adoption policy for unclaimed animals to ensure that each~~
6 ~~animal adopted will be placed in a home where it will be given proper care~~
7 ~~and humane treatment.~~
- 8 k. Coordinate all activities of the County's environmental review team and
9 prepare environmental impact reports for all projects located within a Local
10 Area of Particular Concern or an area recommended as an Urban
11 Wilderness Area and proposed land use actions.
- 12 l. Implement regulations relating to natural resources and delegated federal
13 and state permit programs, including tree protection, septic tanks, and
14 regulatory programs to reduce nonpoint source pollution.
- 15 m. In concert with the Office of the County Attorney, monitor the provisions of
16 and recommend necessary revisions to the Broward County Natural
17 Resource Protection Code.
- 18 n. Develop and implement revisions to wetlands delineation procedures, as
19 needed, to maintain current information on location, type, and quality of
20 wetlands, wetland mitigation criteria, and develop a County wetland
21 mitigation banking program.
- 22 o. Respond to complaints relating to natural resources and coordinate
23 regulatory efforts to protect endangered and other designated plant and
24 animal species.

Coding: Words in ~~struck-through~~ type are deletions from existing text. Words in
underscored type are additions.

- p. Coordinate permitting activities with other divisions and agencies for the evaluation and protection of Broward County's natural resources.
- q. Permit, inspect, and regulate the construction and operation of wastewater treatment plants and collection systems to prevent degradation of natural resources and coordinate with other governmental bodies and agencies regarding implementation of water inflow infiltration prevention into wastewater collection systems.
- r. Regulate the storage, collection, transport, separation, processing, and disposal of solid waste.
- s. Monitor local landfills and adjacent ground water areas.
- t. Establish and collect such fees as may be prescribed by the County Commission for providing Division services and related functions to the public. It shall be the policy of Broward County that the fees shall be so designed as to bear a reasonable relationship to the cost of providing the services.
- u. Issue, process, and resolve administrative and environmental enforcement actions that require administrative or judicial hearings, including the initiation of actions to collect penalties.
- v. Coordinate Department response to environmental complaints, problems, or public records requests.

Section 4. Chapter 8, Part IV, "Natural Resources Planning and Management," is hereby amended to read as follows:

**Part IV. ~~NATURAL RESOURCES~~ ENVIRONMENTAL PLANNING
AND MANAGEMENT COMMUNITY RESILIENCE DIVISION**

Coding: Words in ~~struck-through~~ type are deletions from existing text. Words in underscored type are additions.

**8.17. ~~Natural Resources~~ Environmental Planning and Management Division
Community Resilience Established; Director as Head.**

There is hereby established an ~~Natural Resources~~ Environmental Planning and
~~Management~~ Community Resilience Division ("Division") in the Environmental
Protection and Growth Management Department ("Department") which shall be
responsible for: protecting quality and quantity of water; obtaining maximum reasonable
beneficial use of the water; ensuring safe and adequate water supply; advocating and
encouraging conservation of water; providing for and encouraging appropriate reuse of
water; providing for storm and surface water management; assuring the quality and
quantity of water needed to support the propagation of fish and wildlife and beneficial
recreational uses; and protecting, restoring, and enhancing the biological productivity,
abundance, and diversity of marine, estuarine, freshwater, and terrestrial resources and
associated wildlife. The ~~Natural Resources Planning and Management~~ Division Director
shall be the head of the Division. The ~~Natural Resources Planning and Management~~
Director shall have a four-year college degree, preferably a graduate degree, and shall
be qualified by education or experience, which will include at least seven (7) years'
experience in the fields of water resource planning and management, including four (4)
years of progressively responsible supervisory experience, or any equivalent
combination of training and experience.

8.18. Functions; Responsibilities.

The functions and responsibilities of the ~~Natural Resources Planning and
Management~~ Division shall include the following:

...

Section 5. Chapter 8, Part VII, "Pollution Prevention, Remediation, and Air Quality Division," Section 8.24, is hereby amended to read as follows:

8.24. Functions; Responsibilities.

The functions and responsibilities of the Pollution Prevention, Remediation, and Air Quality Division ("Division") shall include the following:

...

- ~~i.~~ ~~Regulate the storage, collection, transport, separation, processing, and disposal of solid waste.~~
- ~~j.~~ ~~Monitor local landfills and adjacent ground water areas.~~
- ~~k.~~ i. Develop and implement pollution prevention programs such as best management practice and public outreach efforts.
- ~~l.~~ j. Investigate any complaints relating to hazardous materials or solid waste, and take appropriate action.
- ~~m.~~ k. Coordinate special projects with other divisions and agencies to regulate, manage, and prevent pollution from hazardous materials and solid waste in Broward County.
- ~~n.~~ l. Coordinate Broward County's activities in regards to the federal Clean Air Act and State Implementation Plan.
- ~~o.~~ m. Develop and implement emissions reduction plans and programs for motor vehicles, as well as stationary sources of air toxics, ozone precursors, and chlorofluorocarbons.
- ~~p.~~ n. Continuously monitor criteria air pollutants.
- ~~q.~~ o. Implement a stationary source licensing system and conduct a compliance program.

Coding: Words in ~~struck-through~~ type are deletions from existing text. Words in underscored type are additions.

- 1 ~~r.~~ p. Review annual air emissions reports and prepare air emissions
2 inventories.
- 3 ~~s.~~ q. Investigate complaints and prevent excessive air emissions, noise, or
4 objectionable odors.
- 5 ~~t.~~ r. Refer violations of county, state, or federal regulations to the proper
6 authorities and provide support in prosecution of the violation.
- 7 ~~u.~~ s. Review proposed developments for impacts from traffic-related air
8 pollution.
- 9 ~~v.~~ t. Operate the National Emissions Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants
10 asbestos program, including inspections, referrals, outreach, and public
11 education.
- 12 ~~w.~~ u. Coordinate air quality monitoring with state and federal agencies, as well
13 as with other local programs.
- 14 ~~x.~~ v. Coordinate with other divisions and agencies on special projects to protect
15 and improve the air quality of Broward County
- 16 ~~y.~~ w. Perform air toxics analyses.
- 17 ~~z.~~ x. Formulate and implement protocols designs to ensure the production of
18 reliable air quality data.
- 19 ~~aa.~~ y. Perform chemical and physical analyses of inorganic compounds using
20 spectrophotometry and classical analytical methods.
- 21 ~~bb.~~ z. Conduct field testing and sample collection to support laboratory
22 operations.
- 23 ~~cc.~~ aa. Conduct chromatographic organic chemical analyses.
- 24 ~~dd.~~ bb. Perform macro- and micro-biological evaluation of samples.

Coding: Words in ~~struck-through~~ type are deletions from existing text. Words in
underscored type are additions.

- 1 ~~ee.~~ cc. Perform sample manipulation procedures to prepare for analyses by
2 various scientific instruments.
- 3 ~~ff.~~ dd. Develop and utilize laboratory automation and information systems to
4 design studies, to interpret data, and to report findings of environmental
5 investigations.
- 6 ~~gg.~~ ee. Develop and monitor laboratory quality assurance programs.
- 7 ~~hh.~~ ff. Design studies and identify equipment needs to support the scientific
8 needs of the Department.
- 9 ~~ii.~~ gg. Design, conduct, and coordinate research programs for improvement of
10 the environment of Broward County, and to support the goals and
11 objectives of the Department and Broward County.
- 12 ~~jj.~~ hh. Perform chemical and microbiological analyses to support prosecution of
13 enforcement cases and to aid investigations of complaints; and comply
14 with periodic sampling as required by regulation.
- 15 ~~kk.~~ ii. Coordinate air quality monitoring with state and federal agencies, as well
16 as with other local programs.
- 17 ~~ll.~~ jj. Establish environmental enforcement standards.
- 18 ~~mm.~~ Issue and resolve administrative and prejudicial enforcement actions.
- 19 ~~nn.~~ Process matters that require administrative or judicial hearings.
- 20 ~~oo.~~ Coordinate department response to environmental complaints or
21 problems.
- 22 ~~pp.~~ Initiate actions to collect penalties.
- 23 ~~qq.~~ Coordinate environmental public records requests.
- 24

Coding: Words in ~~struck-through~~ type are deletions from existing text. Words in
underscored type are additions.

Section 6. Chapter 8, Part VIII, "Planning and Redevelopment Division," is hereby amended to read as follows:

**PART VIII. PLANNING AND
REDEVELOPMENT DIVISION**

8.26. Planning and Redevelopment Division Established; Director as Head.

There is hereby established a Planning and Redevelopment Division ("Division") which shall be responsible to the Director of the Environmental Protection and Growth Management Department ("Department"). The Division shall be responsible for the administration and operation of the Broward County Land Development Code, Ordinance No. 89-37, Chapter 5, Broward County Code of Ordinances, regulatory review of the land development requirements of Broward County government, and Chapter 39, Broward County Code of Ordinances, and all activities related to redevelopment and general planning services, including preparing the comprehensive plan, conducting demographic and economic research, and providing geographic information systems support. The Division Director shall be the head of the Division. The ~~Planning and Redevelopment~~ Director shall have a degree from a four-year college or university, ~~five (5)~~ preferably a Master's Degree, and shall be qualified by education and experience to include at least six (6) years of progressively responsible experience in land use and planning work, including three four (34) years at an administrative-supervisory level; or any equivalent combination of training and experience.

8.27. Functions; Responsibilities.

The functions and responsibilities of the Division shall include the following:

- a. Prepare, maintain, and monitor achievement of all elements of the Broward County Comprehensive Plan, ~~including all elements~~ except the

Coding: Words in ~~struck-through~~ type are deletions from existing text. Words in underscored type are additions.

1 Broward County Land Use Plan, consistent with Florida Statutes and the
2 Broward County Charter.

3 b. Manage Broward County's Geographic Information System ("GIS") and
4 provide GIS services to those agencies which do not have internal
5 capabilities.

6 ~~e.~~ ~~Develop and execute various neighborhood improvement programs and~~
7 ~~special projects for the unincorporated areas.~~

8 ~~d.~~ c. Prepare neighborhood plans for unincorporated area neighborhoods
9 identifying facilities, services, and programs to enhance the quality of life
10 of residents.

11 ~~e.~~ d. Execute various demographic, econometric, housing, land use, and other
12 analytical models ~~to support county division or agency research projects.~~
13 and

14 ~~f.~~ f. ~~Develop and maintain demographic, land use, economic, and housing~~
15 ~~inventories and data bases~~ databases to support planning initiatives of
16 ~~e~~County divisions and agencies.

17 ~~g.~~ ~~Prepare and distribute general statistical information through a series of~~
18 ~~reports and map atlases in both hard copy and digital format.~~

19 ~~h.~~ e. Facilitate and coordinate the redevelopment and revitalization of Broward
20 County's unincorporated areas. and

21 ~~i.~~ i. ~~Coordinate and partner with Broward municipalities to further their~~
22 ~~particular redevelopment efforts, including coordination and management~~
23 ~~of Chapter 163, Florida Statutes, Community Redevelopment Areas~~
24 ~~(CRAs).~~

Coding: Words in ~~struck-through~~ type are deletions from existing text. Words in
underscored type are additions.

- j. ~~Develop and implement an urban redevelopment strategy for Broward County.~~
- k. ~~Evaluate and report to the County Commission and the County Administrator on all redevelopment efforts and their fiscal impact to Broward County.~~
- l. f. Provide unincorporated area community code and zoning compliance services to support community enhancement efforts.
- m. g. Study, propose, and process changes to the zoning district classification of lands in unincorporated Broward County, to eliminate incompatible uses of land, provide consistency with the Future Unincorporated Area Land Use Plan, and ~~to~~ foster the purposes and intent of the various districts described in the Broward County Zoning Code. and
- n. ~~P~~propose, process, and implement changes to the Broward County Zoning Code consistent with current planning and enforcement practices, technology, and changing socioeconomic structures in unincorporated Broward County.
- h. Receive, review, and process all municipal and unincorporated area applications for plat approval and all applications for site plan approval within the unincorporated area in order to ensure design quality, compliance with required development standards, and compliance with the Broward County Zoning Code, including setbacks, height, plot coverage, parking, lighting, landscaping, and signs.
- i. Coordinate the processing of all delegation requests relating to development permits or related fees to be heard by the County

Coding: Words in ~~struck-through~~ type are deletions from existing text. Words in underscored type are additions.

1 Commission and prepare comprehensive development review reports
2 which address mandated service adequacy requirements for all proposed
3 projects which require County Commission approval, including the cost of
4 any necessary public improvements; identify impact fees and developer
5 contributions related to the proposed development project; and
6 recommend the application of impact fees and developer contributions to
7 fund or assist in the funding of necessary public improvements.

8 j. Monitor and enforce the collection of all application and impact fees,
9 developer contributions, and agreements related thereto, which are
10 required as a part of the development review process.

11 k. In concert with the Office of the County Attorney, monitor the provisions of
12 and recommend necessary revisions to the Broward County Land
13 Development Code.

14 l. Review all plans for building permits in the unincorporated area for the
15 issuance of development orders for building permits and the calculation of
16 impact fees.

17 m. Perform such other special assignments relating to service adequacy and
18 infrastructure delivery as may be designated by the County Administrator
19 or the Department Director.

20 n. Operate the Broward County Traffic Review and Impact Planning System
21 ("TRIPS") and maintain appropriate TRIPS development management
22 databases.

23 o. Administer and enforce the Broward County Zoning Code, including
24 landscaping, parking, signs, lighting, and the Certificate of Use Program

Coding: Words in ~~struck-through~~ type are deletions from existing text. Words in
underscored type are additions.

1 for commercial and industrial properties and home offices, and collect
2 such fines for violations of codes, ordinances, and regulations in effect
3 within Broward County as authorized by the County Commission.

4 Section 7. Chapter 27, "Operational Policy, Environmental Protection and
5 Growth Management Department," Part XL, "Animal Care and Adoption Section
6 Policies and Procedures," is hereby amended to read as follows:

7 **PART XL. ANIMAL CARE AND ADOPTION**

8 **SECTION DIVISION POLICIES AND PROCEDURES**

9 **~~27.238. Adoption Policy and Procedures.~~**

10 ~~In order to fulfill the commitment by the Animal Care and Adoption Section of~~
11 ~~placing each animal adopted from the Animal Care and Adoption Section Shelter into a~~
12 ~~home where it will be given proper care and humane treatment, the following~~
13 ~~procedures shall be instituted within the County facilities:~~

14 a. ~~Adoption Application. Any person who desires to adopt an unclaimed~~
15 ~~animal impounded at the County shelter shall be provided with an "Animal~~
16 ~~Adoption Application" (EXHIBIT 33.A) form which shall be completed by~~
17 ~~the applicant. The application shall request the following information of the~~
18 ~~applicant:~~

19 1. ~~Number of dogs cats presently owned.~~

20 2. ~~Where is animal to be housed?~~

21 3. ~~Is suitable fencing provided?~~

22 4. ~~Type of dwelling in which applicant resides.~~

23 5. ~~Does applicant rent or own residence?~~

24 6. ~~Name and telephone number of landlord owner condominium.~~

Coding: Words in ~~struck through~~ type are deletions from existing text. Words in
underscored type are additions.

7. ~~Does property owner or condominium association approve of pets on premises?~~

b. ~~Initial Screening Criteria. After the applicant has provided the information requested, the Animal Care and Adoption Section shall review the application to determine whether the criteria listed below are met:~~

1. Number of dogs cats presently owned.	Meets requirement if applicant presently owns no more than three (3) pets.
2. Where is animal to be housed?	Meets requirement if animal is to be housed indoors.
3. Is suitable fencing provided?	Meets requirement if animal is to be housed outdoors and suitable shelter and fencing are provided.
4. Type of dwelling in which applicant resides.	Meets requirement if applicant resides in a single-family residence.
5. Does applicant rent or own residence?	Meets requirement if applicant owns his/her residence.

~~To meet the minimum requirements, an applicant must meet at least three (3) of the above criteria.~~

c. ~~Applicants Who Rent. For those applicants who indicate that they do not own their residences, the owner landlord should be called by the Animal Care and Adoption Section to determine if pets are permitted. Should the Animal Care and Adoption Section find that pets are not permitted, the Adoption Application shall be automatically rejected.~~

Coding: Words in ~~struck-through~~ type are deletions from existing text. Words in underscored type are additions.

- 1 d. ~~Applicants Who Reside In A Condominium.~~ If an applicant resides in a
2 condominium type dwelling (as defined under Chapter 718, Florida
3 Statutes, as amended), the Animal Care and Adoption Section shall check
4 to ensure that the condominium association has no covenants, rules or
5 bylaws which prohibit the ownership of pets. Should the Animal Care and
6 Adoption Section determine that pets are not permitted, the Adoption
7 Application shall be automatically rejected.
- 8 e. ~~Agreement Portion of Form.~~ If an applicant has met the minimum
9 requirements and has not been automatically rejected, the applicant's
10 attention should then be directed to the Agreement portion of the form.
11 This portion shall contain the terms and conditions of the adoption
12 arrangement, including information regarding mandatory sterilization, fees,
13 deposits, tattoos, exchanges, defaults, diseases and parasites. After the
14 applicant has read the material, the applicant must sign and date the
15 application.
- 16 f. ~~Automatic Field Investigation.~~ If the applicant fails to meet the minimum
17 requirements of the initial screening, or if the Animal Care and Adoption
18 Section finds that the applicant fails to meet one (1) of the following
19 criteria, a field investigation should be initiated:
- 20 1. ~~Verified address.~~ Applicant must provide an official document
21 which will verify the residence address. Documents considered
22 acceptable are Florida Driver's License, Broward County Voter
23 Registration, Florida Vehicle Registration, Certificate of Domicile,
24 etc.;

Coding: Words in ~~struck-through~~ type are deletions from existing text. Words in
underscored type are additions.

2. ~~No complaints against applicant regarding animal cruelty;~~
3. ~~Has never failed to return an animal for sterilization;~~
4. ~~Has not previously been rejected by the Animal Care and Adoption Section;~~
5. ~~No inconsistencies in information provided.~~

g. ~~Automatic Field Investigation Special Category.~~

1. ~~Breed: Pit Bull (American Staffordshire Terrier; American Pit Bull Terrier; Staffordshire Bull Terrier).~~
2. ~~Because of the unique characteristics of these breeds including their natural, inborn propensity to fight and cause injury, if the animal being adopted is a Pit Bull, a field investigation is automatically required.~~

h. ~~Field Investigation Disposition Form. If a decision is made to initiate a field investigation, the Section shall assign personnel to complete an "Adoption Field Investigation Disposition Form." (EXHIBIT 33.B) This form shall require the investigating Animal Care and Adoption Section personnel to make extensive contact with the applicant and the applicant's home environment. The investigator shall not merely "drive by," but instead shall go to the door, meet with the applicant and/or family and ask to see where the animal will be housed. The investigator shall then complete the Adoption Field Investigation Disposition Form which shall contain the following information:~~

1. ~~Was contact made with adopter and/or family?~~
2. ~~Was address provided by applicant correct?~~

Coding: Words in ~~struck-through~~ type are deletions from existing text. Words in underscored type are additions.

3. ~~Is suitable restraining fence provided?~~

4. ~~Is neighborhood suitable for breed being adopted?~~

5. ~~Are small children or other factors a problem with adopting animal?~~

6. ~~Are there other factors that are being considered in the field investigation?~~

7. ~~Should this adoption application be approved?~~

~~Once the investigation has been completed, the disposition sheet shall be returned to the Animal Care and Adoption Section so that the Animal Care and Adoption Section may complete the adoption process or inform the applicant that the application has been rejected.~~

i. ~~*Final Approval.* After all the preceding steps have been completed and reviewed, the Director of the Permitting, Licensing and Consumer Protection Division Animal Care and Adoption Section or designee shall approve or reject the application based upon the information provided, and based upon the perceived best interest of the animal.~~

27.239. S.P.O.T. Program.

a. *Program:* There is hereby established a "Stop Pet Overpopulation Together" ("S.P.O.T.") program for animals in Broward County. The program shall help defray the cost of animal sterilization and shall be administered through the Broward County Animal Care and Adoption Section Division ("Division"), which is hereby authorized to issue vouchers. Pet owners participating in the program shall make a co-payment of Ten Dollars (\$10.00) per animal to the participating veterinarian/ or organization for the sterilization surgery, rabies vaccination, and a Broward County ~~animal license~~ rabies registration tag. The program shall be open to Broward County

Coding: Words in ~~struck-through~~ type are deletions from existing text. Words in underscored type are additions.

1 dog and cat owners meeting the eligibility requirements set forth below. Sterilization
2 vouchers shall be limited to a maximum of four (4) per household per year. A mother
3 and litter of puppies/ or kittens may be included on one (1) sterilization voucher and
4 count as one (1) pet towards the limit of four (4) per household per year.

5 b. *Participating Veterinarians:* Payment for services provided under the
6 S.P.O.T. program shall be limited to veterinarians/ or organizations that enter into a
7 written agreement with Broward County. The ~~Broward County Animal Care and~~
8 ~~Adoption Section~~ Division shall maintain a list of participating veterinarians/ or
9 organizations.

10 c. *Eligibility Requirements:* ~~Applicants~~ Broward County residents meeting
11 the current Broward County Median Family Income guidelines, based on the U.S.
12 Department of Housing and Urban Development annual estimates of median family
13 income units, shall qualify to participate in the program. Pet owners who are interested
14 in applying for the program shall complete the S.P.O.T. program application developed
15 by the ~~Broward County Animal Care and Adoption Section~~ Division. ~~Pet owners shall~~
16 ~~also and~~ provide proof of residency and proof of income satisfactory to the ~~Broward~~
17 ~~County Animal Care and Adoption Section~~ Division.

18 d. *Approval:* Upon approval of an applicant, the ~~Broward County Animal~~
19 ~~Care and Adoption Section~~ Division Program Coordinator (Program Coordinator) shall
20 mail the voucher(s) to the pet owner, along with a list of participating veterinarians/ or
21 organizations. There shall be a limit of one (1) voucher per animal. Pet owners with
22 multiple animals shall apply for separate vouchers for each animal to be sterilized under
23 the program. It shall be the responsibility of the pet owner to contact a participating
24 veterinarian/ or organization to schedule the surgery upon receipt of the voucher(s).

Coding: Words in ~~struck-through~~ type are deletions from existing text. Words in
underscored type are additions.

1 The S.P.O.T. Program Coordinator shall complete the following information on each
2 voucher: pet owner's name and address; pet's name, type (dog or cat), sex, breed, and
3 color(s); voucher number; and expiration date (90 days after issuance), prior to mailing
4 the voucher(s). Pet owners shall submit each voucher to the participating veterinarian/
5 or organization, along with a Ten Dollar (\$10.00) co-payment for each animal. Following
6 the surgery and prior to receiving payment from Broward County, the veterinarian/ or
7 organization shall complete each voucher, providing the clinic/organization name,
8 address, date of surgery, and weight of the animal ~~prior to receiving payment for the~~
9 ~~voucher from Broward County~~, and shall sign and date each voucher.

10 e. *Payment:* Participating veterinarians/organizations shall submit each
11 voucher and rabies certificate to the ~~Broward County Animal Care and Adoption Section~~
12 Division for payment no later than sixty (60) days after the expiration or termination of
13 the veterinarian/ or organization agreement with Broward County. If approved, Broward
14 County shall subsequently mail the license rabies registration tag and a copy of the
15 rabies certificate to the pet owner. ~~All payments disbursed under this program shall be~~
16 ~~approved by the Animal Care Trust Fund Committee.~~

17 f. *Waiver of Voucher Co-payment:* The Director may waive the Ten Dollar
18 (\$10.00) per animal co-payment for pet owners during special promotional events which
19 are aimed at increasing pet sterilizations such as, but not limited to, the Pit Fix, World
20 Spay Day, Community Catworks, and ASPCA Beat the Heat.

21 **27.240. Statement of Policy for Animal Care and Adoption Retail Sales.**

22 . . .

23 e. *Pricing.*

24
Coding: Words in ~~struck-through~~ type are deletions from existing text. Words in
underscored type are additions.

1 1. The goal of the pricing of the goods and services provided by these
2 ~~Animal Care and Adoption~~ Division retail sales shall be to generate from
3 the total of these retail sales a return of ten percent (10%) to thirty-five
4 percent (35%) percent on the allowable costs of the total of these retail
5 sales.

6 2. Returns on direct costs shall be continually monitored, and, each quarter,
7 the ~~Animal Care Administrator~~ Director or designee shall review the
8 returns in detail and take the appropriate actions, if any, to effect the
9 necessary adjustments to the pricing and/or fee schedules of any or all of
10 the retail sales.

11 f. *Procedures.* Permanent procedures for governing these retail sales shall
12 be promulgated by Numbered Procedures Memoranda of the Division of ~~Permitting,~~
13 ~~Licensing and Consumer Protection.~~ These procedures shall cover retail sale
14 operations, inventory control, cash handling, revenue reporting, quarterly reporting, and
15 pricing (to include the sale and rental price, and fee schedules, and pricing strategies).

16 g. *Uniform Fees and Charges.* Nothing herein is intended to change any fee
17 or charge for services and activities provided by the ~~Animal Care and Adoption Section~~
18 Division, as set forth in Chapter 40, Broward County Administrative Code, nor to ~~infer~~
19 imply in any manner that the rights and authority to approve such changes does not rest
20 with the Board of County Commissioners.

21 h. *Donations.* Donations shall be accepted pursuant to Section 18.63,
22 Broward County Administrative Code, ~~as amended,~~ and shall be used for the specific
23 purpose donated, if any, and shall be subject to any stated restrictions.

24 **27.241. Rescue Partner Policy and Procedures.**

Coding: Words in ~~struck-through~~ type are deletions from existing text. Words in
underscored type are additions.

1 a. In order to increase the number of animals that are acquired from Broward
2 County animal shelters, the ~~Permitting, Licensing and Consumer Protection~~ Division
3 may permit Rescue Partners to acquire animals housed at the County's animal shelters
4 to promote the animals' rescue.

5 b. Rescue Partner means a ~~non-profit~~ nonprofit organization, which has been
6 approved by the ~~Permitting, Licensing and Consumer Protection~~ Division, that rescues
7 animals.

8 c. The Director of the ~~Permitting, Licensing and Consumer Protection~~
9 Division has the sole discretion to determine which animals may be released for rescue;
10 however, the County's main priority shall be to adopt animals to the public.

11 d. In order for a Rescue Partner to ~~rescue~~ acquire animals from the County,
12 the Rescue Partner must complete a Rescue Partner Application and Terms and
13 Conditions and agree to the County's terms and conditions. The form of the application
14 and terms and conditions must be approved by the Director of the ~~Permitting, Licensing~~
15 ~~and Consumer Protection~~ Division, and may be amended as deemed necessary by the
16 Director.

17 e. ~~Animal Care~~ The Division is responsible for reviewing the application to
18 determine that a Rescue Partner is qualified to rescue animals. The qualifications of a
19 Rescue Partner are contained in the ~~a~~Application and ~~t~~Terms and eConditions ~~approved~~
20 by the Director of the ~~Permitting, Licensing and Consumer Protection~~ Division.

21 f. The Division reserves the right to terminate, suspend, amend, or modify a
22 Rescue Partner's right to acquire animals housed at the County's animal shelter when
23 deemed by the Director to be in the best interests of the animal(s).
24

1 Section 8. Chapter 40, "Fees and Other Charges, Environmental Protection
2 and Growth Management Department," Part VI, "Permitting, Licensing and Consumer
3 Protection Division," is hereby retitled, and Section 40.27 is hereby amended to read as
4 follows:

5 **PART VI. ~~PERMITTING,~~ ENVIRONMENTAL LICENSING AND**
6 **~~CONSUMER PROTECTION~~ BUILDING PERMITTING DIVISION**

7 **40.27. General Fees Schedule.**

8 ...

9 d. All Permits:

10 1. At application, a ~~non-refundable~~ nonrefundable minimum permit fee
11 and any assessable plan review fees per the Plan Review Fee
12 Schedule, Exhibit 40A, will be assessed pending issuance of final
13 documents. These fees are necessary to cover the administrative
14 costs of the preliminary processing.

15 2. Training and continuing educational fees:

16 (a) \$0.02 per \$1.00 of permit and plan review fee.

17 (b) All fees shall be reserved for training and
18 continuing education for the employees of the
19 ~~Building Code Services~~ Division, which will
20 include any material, equipment, code books,
21 code reference materials, attending
22 conferences, and any other miscellaneous
23 expenses, including travel expenditures.

24 ...

Coding: Words in ~~struck-through~~ type are deletions from existing text. Words in
underscoring type are additions.

5. Expired permit-Minimum..... 125.00

...

(c) On projects such as extensions, additions, carport enclosures, pools, fences, driveways, roofs, etc., a fee will be determined predicated on the number of inspections required by ~~Building Code Services~~ the Division to finalize the improvement at a rate per inspection of..... 66.00

...

Section 9. Section 40.35, "Zoning Fee Schedule," is hereby renumbered as new Section 40.48 in Part VIII, "Review by the Planning and Redevelopment Division," to read as follows:

**Part VIII. REVIEW BY THE PLANNING AND
REDEVELOPMENT DIVISION**

...

~~40.35.~~ **40.48.** Zoning Fee Schedule.

...

Fee

Section 10. Sections 40.38, "Animal Care and Adoption Section Fee Schedule," and 40.38.1. "Animal Care and Adoption Center Waiver," are hereby renumbered and transferred to Part III to be entitled, "Animal Care and Adoption Division," and further amended to read as follows:

PART III. ~~RESERVED~~ ANIMAL CARE AND ADOPTION DIVISION

~~40.38.~~ **40.9.** Animal Care and Adoption ~~Section~~ Division Fee Schedule.

Coding: Words in ~~struck-through~~ type are deletions from existing text. Words in underscored type are additions.

The following fee schedule is hereby adopted:

- a. *Impoundment and Boarding Fees.* Impound and ~~B~~board fees shall be paid by the owner of any dog or cat impounded ~~before such animal is released.~~ Released ear-notched feral or community cats that are part of an established colony shall have impound fees waived. Offenses are determined by the owner's name, not the animal's name. Impoundment fees are also applicable to all dogs and cats redeemed/ or claimed from quarantine. The Animal Care and Adoption ~~Section~~ Division may set up a payment plan for individuals who cannot pay the entire amount of their fees at the time the animal is released. The Director, taking into account owners who reclaim their dog or cat prior to it being impounded or within twenty-four (24) hours of arrival, may decrease or waive the impound and board fees.

	<i>Fee</i>
1. First Impoundment	\$30.00
2. Second Impoundment	50.00
3. Third and Subsequent Impoundment.....	150.00
4. Per Diem Boarding Rates. Rate	20.00
5. Unsterilized Pet Impound Fee, (Fee shall be waived if pet owner provides proof of sterilization to the Section <u>Division</u> within thirty (30) days <u>of impoundment</u>)	150.00

- b. *Adoption Fee for Dogs and Cats.* All dog/ and cat adoption fees include spay/ or neuter, initial

Coding: Words in ~~struck-through~~ type are deletions from existing text. Words in underscored type are additions.

wormings, initial vaccines, medical testing, rabies vaccination, microchip implanting and microchip registration, and County ~~R~~abies ~~R~~egistration tag.

1. (a) Adoption Fee for Dogs 50.00
- (b) Adoption Fee for Cats 20.00
2. Adoption fee deposit; for individuals interested in adopting an animal which has not yet to have been deemed adoptable. Adopter must fill out an adoption application and have ~~Section~~ Division customer service staff approve the application before paying the nonrefundable adoption fee deposit 20.00
3. Two (2) Cats for the Price of One (1) Program. From May 1 through September 30 of each year, individuals may adopt two (2) cats or kittens for a reduced adoption fee ~~50.00~~ 20.00
4. Rescue Fee; for approved Rescue Partner that obtains and places for adoption fully-vetted nonadopted healthy animals from the County's animal shelters ~~40.00~~ 20.00
5. Rescue Fee; for approved Rescue Partner that obtains and places for adoption animals with special needs, including, but not limited to, urgent rescue cases, injured, sick, or infirmed

Coding: Words in ~~struck-through~~ type are deletions from existing text. Words in underscoring type are additions.

animals, from the County's animal shelters

No Charge

6. The ~~administrator~~ Director of the ~~Animal Care and Adoption Section~~, taking into account the number of animals in custody at that time, may decrease or waive the adoption or rescue fees contained in this subsection for a limited period of time, as circumstances may require, including, but not limited to, overcapacity and special events.

c. *Rabies Registration Tag Fees.*

1. Sterilized ~~D~~dog ~~O~~ne-Yyear ~~R~~rabies ~~R~~egistration tag, four (4) months or older (plus Pet License Sales Agent handling fee not to exceed five dollars (\$5.00))

20.00

...

21. The ~~administrator~~ Director of the ~~Animal Care and Adoption Section~~ may decrease or waive the ~~R~~rabies ~~R~~egistration tag fee contained in this subsection in connection with special programs that encourage spaying and neutering or if a reduction or waiver ensures a positive outcome or release for a sheltered animal.

d. *Late Rabies Registration Tag Renewal Fees.* A late

Coding: Words in ~~struck-through~~ type are deletions from existing text. Words in underscored type are additions.

fee shall be charged for not renewing a ~~R~~abies
Registration tag within thirty (30) days of the
expiration of the previous year's ~~R~~abies Registration
tag. The Director may decrease or waive the late
Rabies Registration tag fee contained in this
subsection in connection with special programs that
encourage spaying and neutering.

...

e. Special Designation Registration Fees.

1. Guard Dog	100.00
2. Dangerous Dog	500.00
3. Aggressive Dog	250.00

f. Late Special Designation Registration Fees.

1. Guard Dog (if not registered within seventy-two (72) hours of acquisition)	25.00
2. Dangerous Dog (if not registered within fourteen (14) calendar days of classification of <u>as</u> dangerous, the upholding of the classification of <u>as</u> dangerous, or the setting up of residence within the County)	100.00

...

h. Microchip Implanting 15.00

i. Bite Animal Transportation Fee. ~~Owner of bite~~ When
an animal has bitten a person or other animal and the

Coding: Words in ~~struck-through~~ type are deletions from existing text. Words in
underscored type are additions.

1	<u>owner</u> has failed to quarantine <u>the</u> animal at an	
2	approved quarantine facility within twenty-four (24)	
3	hours of notification of <u>the</u> incident and an officer is	
4	dispatched to transport the animal to the Center	
5	<u>shelter</u> for quarantine.	75.00
6	j. Commercial Euthanasia <u>or</u> Cremation.	
7	1. Small Animal (0 - 20 lbs.).....	35.00
8	2. Medium Animal (21 - 50 lbs.)	50.00
9	3. Large Animal (51 - 150 lbs.)	100.00
10	...	
11	n. <i>Civil Penalties.</i> Any person cited for an infraction of	
12	Chapter 4 shall pay a civil penalty for each infraction.	
13	Offenses are determined by the owner's name, not	
14	<u>the</u> animal's name.	
15	...	
16	2. Bite from Animal (4-3, 4-14.5, and 4-15).	
17	(a) First <u>Each</u> Offense	500.00
18	(b) Any Other Offense	500.00
19	(c) Unmuzzled Animals (4-14.5).....	500.00
20	...	
21	5. Failure to Provide Required Rabies	
22	Vaccination (4-10).	
23	First and Subsequent <u>Each</u> Offenses	300.00
24	6. Failure to Register Dog or Cat (4-11).	

Coding: Words in ~~struck-through~~ type are deletions from existing text. Words in underscored type are additions.

1		First and Subsequent <u>Each</u> Offenses	300.00
2	...		
3	13.	Fighting of Animal or Teaching Animal to Fight	
4		(4-20).	
5		First and Subsequent <u>Each</u> Offenses	500.00
6	...		
7	18.	Dogs and Cats Prohibited on the Beaches	
8		(4-27).	
9		(a) First Offense	125.00
10		(b) Second and Subsequent Offenses	200.00
11	19. <u>18.</u>	Dog or Cat in Vehicle (4-32).	
12		(a) First Offense	350.00
13		(b) Second and Subsequent Offenses	500.00
14	20. <u>19.</u>	Failure to Obtain a Guard Dog Permit (4-13).	
15		(a) Owner of Guard Dog	100.00
16		(b) Operator of Guard Dog Service	150.00
17	o.	<i>Clinic Service Fees.</i>	
18	1.	Rabies Inoculation Fee	10.50
19	2.	Fecal Check	10.00
20	3. <u>2.</u>	Heartworm <u>SNAP</u> Test--Occult	20.00 <u>25.00</u>
21	4. <u>3.</u>	<u>Strongid</u> Deworming--Oral	4.00
22	5. <u>4.</u>	<u>Drontal</u> Deworming--Injectable	5.00
23	6.	Antibiotic Therapy	10.00
24	7.	Shock Treatment--IV Fluids	10.00

Coding: Words in ~~struck-through~~ type are deletions from existing text. Words in underscored type are additions.

1	8.	Shock Treatment Steroids	25.00
2	9.	Shock Treatment IV Catheter	25.00
3	10.	Medication Administration (Topical eye, ear, oral)	25.00
4	11.	Ear Cleaning	10.00
5	12.	Needle Aspirate	8.00
6	13. <u>5.</u>	Subcutaneous Fluids--Dogs	25.00
7	14. <u>6.</u>	Subcutaneous Fluids--Cats	25.00
8	15.	Bandage Simple	8.00
9	16.	Bandage Heavy Splint	15.00
10	17.	Vaccines	10.00
11	18.	Clip Clean Wound	25.00
12	19. <u>7.</u>	Sedative	8.00
13	20. <u>8.</u>	General Anesthesia	15.00
14	21. <u>9.</u>	Anesthesia--Gas (per hour)	25.00
15	22. <u>10.</u>	Anesthesia--Injectable	10.00
16	23.	Bathing and Dip (Deflea Litter)	25.00
17	24.	Ear Swab for Mites (Microscopic Exam)	10.00
18	25.	Injection Administration per Day First Injection	5.00
19	26.	Injection Administration per Day Each	2.00
20		Additional Injection	2.00
21	27.	Feline Leukemia Test	15.00
22	28. <u>11.</u>	Canine Parvovirus Test	15.00
23	29. <u>12.</u>	Canine Distemper Vaccine (DA2PPC)	15.00
24	30. <u>13.</u>	Feline Rhinotracheitis Vaccine (Felocell CVR) ..	25.00

Coding: Words in ~~struck-through~~ type are deletions from existing text. Words in underscored type are additions.

31.	Bordetella Vaccine	15.00
32. 14.	Feline Immuno-Deficiency Virus/ <u>Feline</u> <u>Leukemia Virus Test</u> (FIV/ <u>FeLV</u>) Test.....	35.00 25.00
33. 15.	<u>Panacur</u> Whipworm Treatment	10.00
34.	Heartworm Treatment	25.00
35.	Eye Treatment (cats and dogs)	15.00
36.	Eye Treatment Ointment (cats and dogs)	10.00
37.	Canine Puppy Distemper Vaccine (DA2PPC L) (DA2MP)	8.00
38.	Skin Scraping for Microscopic Examination (Mange)	20.00
39.	Necropsy (If necropsy requires toxicology test and microscopic examination, necropsy must be performed by a private veterinarian.)	350.00
40. 16.	Sterilizations for dogs and cats impounded intact more than two (2) times:	

~~40.38.1.~~ 40.10. Animal Care and Adoption Center Division Waiver.

The Board of County Commissioners hereby waives the fees pursuant to Section 40.38(d), Broward County Administrative Code, for licenses for inoculated dogs and cats ~~for~~ of individuals who meet federal low income guidelines in conjunction with the establishment of the permanent program for the Animal Care and Adoption ~~Section's~~ Division's free sterilization clinics.

Section 11. Section 40.47, "Fee Schedule," is hereby retitled to read as follows:

Coding: Words in ~~struck-through~~ type are deletions from existing text. Words in underscored type are additions.

1 **40.47. Rezoning, Special Exception, and Zoning Code Change Fee Schedule.**

2 . . .

3 Section 12. SEVERABILITY.

4 If any portion of this Resolution is determined by any Court to be invalid, the
5 invalid portion shall be stricken, and such striking shall not affect the validity of the
6 remainder of this Resolution. If any Court determines that this Resolution, or any
7 portion hereof, cannot be legally applied to any individual(s), group(s), entity(ies),
8 property(ies), or circumstance(s), such determination shall not affect the applicability
9 hereof to any other individual, group, entity, property or circumstance.

10 Section 13. INCLUSION IN THE ADMINISTRATIVE CODE.

11 It is the intention of the Board of County Commissioners that the provisions of
12 this Resolution shall become and be made a part of the Broward County Administrative
13 Code; and that the sections of this Resolution be renumbered or relettered and the word
14 "resolution" may be changed to "section," "article," or such other appropriate word or
15 phrase in order to accomplish such intentions.

16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

Coding: Words in ~~struck-through~~ type are deletions from existing text. Words in
underscored type are additions.

1 Section 14. EFFECTIVE DATE.

2 This Resolution shall become effective upon adoption.

3
4 ADOPTED this ____ day of _____, 2014.

5
6 Approved as to form and legal sufficiency:
Joni Armstrong Coffey, County Attorney

7
8 By /s/ Maite Azcoitia 05/29/14
9 Maite Azcoitia (date)
10 Deputy County Attorney
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21

22 MA/gmb
23 05/29/14
24 #13-056
epgmd-r02

Coding: Words in ~~struck-through~~ type are deletions from existing text. Words in
underscored type are additions.